
 
 
 

7th December 2018 
 

 
Freedom of Information Request Reference No: FOI 004206/18 
 
I write in connection with your request for information received by the Norfolk and Suffolk 
Constabularies on the 15th November 2018 in which you sought access to the following 
information: 
 

1 Who is your current supplier of Forensic Medical Services to Custody Suites, to 
include Forensic Medical Examiners and Custody Nurses?    

 
2 When does your current contract expire for the supply of these services / medical 

personnel?  
 

3 What is the annual cost of this contract to supply FMEs and Custody Nurses?  
 

4 Who is responsible for the service standards and maintenance of this contract? 
 

5 How many times in the last 12 months has your contract provider failed to provide 
an FME or Custody Nurse for any given shift (12 hour coverage period)?  

 
6A Do you use agencies to provide Forensic Medical Service personnel in the event of 

staff shortages? 
  

6B If so, please provide the average charge for each staff group in 2018?    
 
Response to your Request 
 
The response provided below is correct as of 20th November 2018. 
 
Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies have located the following information as relevant to your 
request. 
 
Q1 The current provider is G4S Medical Services. 
 
Q2 The contract expiration is 31st March 2019. 
 
Q3  

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

NORFOLK 

£899,577 £911,824 £929,996 

SUFFOLK 

£650,000 £657,506 £670,813 

 



 The Year 4 (extension) for Norfolk was circa £948,596. 
 The Year 4 (extension) for Suffolk was circa £684,230. 
 

The figures above were for the three years to end of March 2018.  An uplift of 2.6% was 
applied to the Year 3 figure for a further extension to the end of March 2019. 

 
Q4 Hertfordshire Constabulary (Procurement) is responsible for all commercial aspects of the 

contract, which covers 5 forces.  These are Norfolk, Suffolk, Bedfordshire, Cambridgeshire 
and Hertfordshire.  

 
Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies hold monthly reviews with the service provider in 
addition to the regional contract performance monitoring meetings.  Issues which are 
specific to Norfolk and Suffolk are discussed at these meetings. 

 
Q5 Norfolk – Between 1st October 2017 and 30th September 2018, there were 365.5 FME or 

HCP gaps in the rota. 
 
 Suffolk – Between 1st October 2017 and 30th September 2018, there were 181 FME or HCP 

gaps in the rota. 
 
Q6 The Constabularies do not directly employ agency medical staff to fill gaps on the rotas.  

The responsibility rests with the provider to use appropriate methods such as utilising bank, 
agency and zero hours staff.  
 

 
This response will be published on the Constabularies web-site under the Freedom of Information 
pages:- 
 
https://www.norfolk.police.uk/about-us/our-data/disclosure-log 
https://www.suffolk.police.uk/services/freedom-information/disclosure-logs  
 
Should you have any further queries concerning this request, please contact Amanda Gibson, FOI 
Decision Maker, quoting the reference number shown above. 
 

A full copy of the Freedom of Information Act (2000) can be viewed on the ‘Office of Public Sector 
Information’ web-site; 

http://www.opsi.gov.uk/ 
 

Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies are not responsible for the content, or the reliability, of the 
website referenced. The Constabulary cannot guarantee that this link will work all of the time, and 

we have no control over the availability of the linked pages. 

https://www.norfolk.police.uk/about-us/our-data/disclosure-log
https://www.suffolk.police.uk/services/freedom-information/disclosure-logs
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/


Your Right to Request a Review of Decisions Made Under the Terms of the  
Freedom of Information Act (2000). 

 
If you are unhappy with how your request has been handled, or if you think the decision is 
incorrect, you have the right to ask the Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary to review their decision. 
 

Ask Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies to look at the decision again. 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the decision made by Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies under the 
Freedom of Information Act (2000), regarding access to information, you must notify the Norfolk 
and Suffolk Constabulary that you are requesting a review within 40 days of the date of its 
response to your Freedom of Information request.  Requests for a review should be made in 
writing and addressed to: 
 

Freedom of Information Decision Maker 
Information Management Department 
Norfolk Constabulary 
Operations and Communications Centre 
Jubilee House 
Falconers Chase 
Wymondham 
Norfolk NR18 0WW 
OR 

    Email: freedomofinformation@norfolk.pnn.police.uk  
 
In all possible circumstances Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary will aim to respond to your request 
for us to look at our decision again within 20 working days of receipt of your request for an internal 
review. 
 

The Information Commissioner. 
 
After lodging a request for a review with Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary, if you are still 
dissatisfied with the decision, you can apply to the Information Commissioner for a decision on 
whether the request for information has been dealt with in accordance with the requirements of the 
Act. 
 
For information on how to make application to the Information Commissioner please visit their 
website at www.ico.org.uk or contact them at the address shown below: 
 

The Information Commissioner’s Office 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow 
Cheshire 
SK9 5AF 
Telephone: 01625 545 700 

 
 

 

mailto:freedomofinformation@norfolk.pnn.police.uk
http://www.informationcommissioner.gov.uk/

